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      Staff Report 
              City of Manhattan Beach 

 
 

 
TO:   Honorable Mayor Tell and Members of the City Council 
 

THROUGH:  David N. Carmany, City Manager 
 

FROM:  Jim Arndt, Director of Public Works 
   Steve Finton, City Engineer 
 

DATE:  April 3, 2012 
 

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement with Psomas ($75,000) for Design Services 
Related to the Sepulveda Blvd. and 2nd Street Water Main Replacement Project,  
Additional Appropriation from Water Fund Reserves ($25,000), and an 
Amendment to the Psomas Agreement for Computer Water System Modeling 
(Not-to-exceed $5,000) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 Staff recommends that City Council:  
 

 

1) Authorize the City Manager to award a Professional Services Agreement to Psomas in 
an amount not to exceed $75,000 for professional engineering services to design the 
Sepulveda Blvd. and 2nd Street Water main Replacement Project; 

 

2) Appropriate Water Fund reserves in the amount of $25,000 to the Sepulveda Blvd. and 
2nd Street Water main Replacement Project (Project No. 12829E); and, 
 

3) Authorize the City Manager to approve an amendment to the Agreement with Psomas in 
an amount not-to-exceed $5,000 for additional water system computer modeling.  

 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 
Funding for the recommended contract would be provided from appropriations made by City 
Council for this Project in the Capital Improvement Projects as follows: 
 

Table 1                                                Budget 

Current Appropriation (Water Funds) for Design Project No. 12829E $100,000 

Recommended Appropriation from Water Fund Reserves for Design* $25,000 

Total Design Appropriation $125,000 

Proposed FY2012-2013 Appropriation as indicated in the proposed FY 2012-13 
through 2016-17 Capital Improvement Plan. 

$1,100,000 

Total  $1,225,000 

*Sufficient Water Fund reserves exist to fund the recommended appropriation. 
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Estimated expenditures for project management, geotechnical, topographic survey and 
engineering costs are indicated in Table 2 below. 
 

Table 2                                                Estimated Costs 

Current Design Appropriation if Add’l Appropriation Approved $125,000 

Project Management Costs VA & Sunbeam Consulting $28,108  

Geotechnical Agreement Kling Consulting  Group, Inc. $3,913 

Topographic Survey Agreement KDM Meridian $12,410  

Recommended Design Agreement with Psomas $75,000 
Recommended Amendment to Psomas Agreement for Water System 
Modeling 

$5,000 

Total Estimated Design Expenses $124,161 

Balance  $831 

 
BACKGROUND:   
 
This project is part of the City’s ongoing program to replace aging water mains within the 
City’s water distribution system. This project provides for construction of replacement water 
mains and new fire hydrants in Sepulveda Blvd. from Manhattan Beach Blvd. to 2nd Street and 
in 2nd Street from the Larsson Pump Station to the 2nd Street Pump Station. In addition, new or 
replacement pipes crossing Sepulveda Blvd. would be constructed at 3rd, 9th, 10th, and 11th 
Streets. (See attached location map) 
 
The existing water mains on the west side of Sepulveda Blvd. are 70 to 80 years old. Replacing 
these mains and the main in 2nd Street will restore the useful lives of these mains and will assure 
the longevity and dependability of the system. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In January 2011, Staff issued a request for proposal for On-Call Engineering Services. Fifty-
three proposals were received. Staff reviewed the proposals and developed a shortlist of firms 
for consideration on City projects over the next three years. Five firms were identified for water 
main and sewer main design services: AKM Consulting Engineers, Cannon, Psomas, and Tetra 
Tech, Inc. and VA Consulting, Inc.  VA Consulting, Inc. was retained to provide Program 
Management Services for portions of the City’s Water System Capital Improvement Program 
(including this project) and was therefore, not eligible to provide design services on this water 
main replacement project. 
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A Request for Engineering Design Services & Fees for design of the Sepulveda Blvd. and 2nd 
Street Water Main Replacement Project was issued to the consultants listed below. These 
consultants provided their proposal and fee (shown below). 
 

1.  Psomas     ($ 75,000) 
2.  AKM Consulting Engineers   ($ 79,570) 

 3.  Cannon     ($ 108,462)  
 4.  Tetra Tech, Inc.    (did not submit) 
 
City staff evaluated the proposals and ranked the firms based on qualifications and approach. 
Staff deems that the team, approach and fee proposed by Psomas to be the most effective 
proposal. Staff recommends that the design contract be awarded to Psomas. 
 
Appropriation 
A supplemental appropriation is required to fund the recommended design contract because 
design and Caltrans permitting will require more effort than originally anticipated.  The 
following project elements are more extensive due to Caltrans oversight.  
 

• Pavement rehabilitation in excess of simple trench repair 
• Traffic control required for pavement rehabilitation 
• Signing and striping for pavement rehabilitation 
• Project construction impacts may warrant night work 
• Greater coordination and review to obtain Caltrans permit 

 
Amendment to agreement with Psomas 
This project will install new pipelines connecting to the Larsson Street and 2nd Street Pump 
Stations.  The consultant designing improvements to these pump stations recently raised a 
concern that the pipelines serving the stations may not be adequate to meet the demands of the 
larger capacity pumps to be installed.  It is recommended that the water system be modeled to 
determine if larger or more lines are needed and to estimate system pressures when the larger 
pumps are operating.  The computer model developed during the master plan effort would be 
used and several different operational scenarios would be modeled.  This is critical to make sure 
the system operates as intended.  It is recommended that the recommended Psomas Agreement 
be amended to include the additional water modeling.  Psomas is currently working with the 
City’s water model as part of the Hill Section water main replacement project.  Their knowledge 
of the City’s model would facilitate modeling in the Larsson/2nd Street area.   
 
The need for additional water modeling was identified very late after the recommended contract 
documents were executed by the consultant and approved-as-to-form by the City Attorney.  As 
a time saving measure, staff recommends that City Council authorize the City Manager to 
negotiate and approve an amendment to the recommended Psomas agreement for the water 
modeling services in an amount not-to-exceed $5,000.  
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Schedule 
Staff expects that the plans and specifications for the Sepulveda Blvd. and 2nd Street Water 
Main Replacement Project will be completed and ready for bidding by January 2013 with 
construction in spring of 2013. 
 
Attachments: 
 

1) Map of the Sepulveda Blvd. and 2nd Street Water Main Replacement Project locations 
2) Proposed Professional Services Agreement with Psomas for the Sepulveda Blvd. and 2nd 

Street Water Main Replacement Project. 
 
xc: Henry Mitzner, Controller 
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